
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings during the 
COVID-19 shutdown, the City Council invites you to join 
and/or participate in a variety of ways:  Via computer 

Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, email 
and/or text!  See details on page 3. 

 
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 
March 22, 2021 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Jim Cartledge, Vestavia Hills Chaplain 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Approval Of The Agenda 

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition 

a. School Board Vacancy – Kimberly Cook 

7. City Manager’s Report 

8. Councilors’ Reports 

9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 

10. Approval Of Minutes – March 8, 2021 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

11. Resolution Number 5303 – Annexation – 90 Day – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 26, Altadena 

Forest Estates, 5th Sector; Vita Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 3000 – Annexation – Overnight – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 26, Altadena 

Forest Estates, 5th Sector; Vita Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 5304 – Annexation – 90 Day – 1700 Shades Crest Road; Whitney and 

Thomas Holland, Owners   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 3001 – Annexation – Overnight – 1700 Shades Crest Road; Whitney 

and Thomas Holland, Owners   (public hearing) 

15. Resolution Number 5307 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2829 Acton Place; Lindsay and Jake 

Brown, Owners   (public hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 3002 – Annexation – Overnight – 2829 Acton Place; Lindsay and Jake 

Brown, Owners   (public hearing) 



17. Resolution Number 5308 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2632 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 15 & 16, 

Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Victor and Cynthia Maldonado, Owners  (public 

hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 3003 – Annexation – Overnight – 2632 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 15 & 16, 

Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Victor and Cynthia Maldonado, Owners  (public 

hearing) 

19. Resolution Number 5309 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2600 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 8, Altadena 

Valley Country Club Sector; Mark and Hillary Smith, Owners  (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 3004 – Annexation – Overnight – 2600 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 8, 

Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Mark and Hillary Smith, Owners  (public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 5312 – A Resolution Of The Vestavia Hills City Council Acting As The 

Vestavia Hills Emergency Communications Board (E911 Board) Authorizing The Purchase 

Of $24,000 For Radio Communications Equipment   (public hearing) 

New Business 

22. Resolution Number 5313 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 

And Authorizing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

23. Resolution Number 5305 – A Resolution Approving And Assenting To The Vacation Of A 

Portion Of Pine Tree Drive; John Boone, Owner   (public hearing) 

24. Resolution Number 5306 – A Resolution Determining The Value Of Vacated Right-Of-

Way Vacated By Resolution Number 5305     (public hearing) 

25. Citizens Comments 

26. Adjournment 

  



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
Due to the COVID-19 “Stay at Home” Order issued by Gov. Ivey, the City Council work 
sessions and meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you chose not 
to attend in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 
 
 
COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4555343275. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself by 
toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your name 
and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 
 
Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  

 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)  
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)  
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you 

may use to raise a virtual hand  
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window  
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active 

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants 
 
TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 
 
 
TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 
 
If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2021 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 8, 2021 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, in 
coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and pursuant to Orders from the Alabama 
State Health Officer, requiring social distancing along with limits of attendees, this meeting was 
held with a portion of Staff and general public/audience members attending via Zoom.com 
following publication pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The 
City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry 

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul Head, Councilor* 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 

      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist* 
      Ryan Farrell, Fire Captain* 
       *present via Zoom or telephone 
 

Ron Higey, Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation which was followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion of approval of the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the agenda as presented was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver.   Roll call vote was, as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2021 

Page 2 
 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook announced that the City Council would begin accepting applications for an 
upcoming vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Board of Education.  Applications will open 
beginning tomorrow, March 9, 2021.  Applications may be obtained at the City’s website.  
Deadline for application is 5 PM, Monday, April 12, 2021.  She encouraged everyone 
interested to apply.  The Council will vote on April 26, 2021 with personal interviews to 
be scheduled for the 15th and 16th of April. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Gary Jordan and Clabe Dobbs, Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce Board members, who were participating in the meeting in person. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold their regular 
meeting at Thursday beginning at 6 PM. 

 Mr. Head announced that the Parks and Recreation Board will meet in a regular meeting 
on March 16, 2021 at 7 AM in Executive Conference Room. 

 Mrs. Cook announced that the Vestavia Hills Board of Education will hold a special called 
meeting tomorrow beginning at 5 PM. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that, following the discussions at the strategic work session, 
information received from AmWaste was that the Wednesday/Saturday routes were not 
being received very well by the public.  Following a request from the Council at those 
work sessions, AmWaste has found a way to alter that Saturday route to a weekday route.  
He stated that information will be distributed soon regarding the proposed changed to 
ensure everyone knows before the change actually goes into effect. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated that he will attend the monthly Chamber of Commerce meeting via 
Zoom.  He stated that the keynote speaker for the event will be Kelly Caruso, the CEO of 
Shipt. 

 Mayor Curry gave an update on legislative matters that are happening down of 
Montgomery.  He indicated that the Fireworks Bill, if passed, would take away the City’s 
authority to regulate fireworks.  He stated that, thanks to the efforts of city officials and 
the Fire Department, there has been an amendment made to the bill to allow the City to 
determine whether or not to allow or deny the sale of fireworks. He stated that this will go 
back to the Senate and he is hoping that Senator Waggoner will help to keep that 
amendment intact. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2021 

Page 3 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for approval of the following minutes:  February 11 & 12, 
2021 (Planning Strategic Work Session) And February 22, 2021 (Regular Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes of February 11 & 12, 2021 (Planning Strategic 

Work Session) And February 22, 2021 (Regular Meeting) was by Mr. Weaver and 
seconded by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5310 
 

Resolution Number 5310 – A Resolution Approving A Special Events Alcohol License For 
Event Concessions D/B/A Wing Ding At 1032 Montgomery Highway; Patrick 
Joseph Obrien II, Executive  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5310 was by Mr. Weaver, and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
The Mayor stated that this is an annual event held here at City Hall which is for April 24, 

2021.  This requires Council approval each year so the vendor may serve alcohol at the event. 
 
Joseph O’Brien II was present in regard to this request.  He explained that they were 

approved last year but the event was cancelled due to COVID-19.  He stated they are looking 
forward to this year’s festivities. 

 
Mr. Pierce asked if the drinks will be sold in cans or bottles. 
 
Mr. O’Brien stated they will only sell cans, and everyone will be checked for identification 

with barriers, monitors and controlled access to /from the event. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes      motion carried. 

 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2021 

Page 4 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5311 

 
Resolution Number 5311 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 

And Authorizing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5311 was by Mr. Weaver, and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution declares some older police vehicles as surplus as 

they are at the end of their life. 
 
There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  

Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes      motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Resolution Number 5303 – Annexation – 90 Day – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 26, 
Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector; Vita Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3000 – Annexation – Overnight – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 26, 
Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector; Vita Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5304 – Annexation – 90 Day – 1700 Shades Crest Road; Whitney 
and Thomas Holland, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3001 – Annexation – Overnight – 1700 Shades Crest Road; 
Whitney and Thomas Holland, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5307 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2829 Acton Place; Lindsay and 
Jake Brown, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3002 – Annexation – Overnight – 2829 Acton Place; Lindsay and 
Jake Brown, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5308 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2632 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 15 & 
16, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Victor and Cynthia Maldonado, Owners  
(public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3003 – Annexation – Overnight – 2632 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 15 
& 16, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Victor and Cynthia Maldonado, Owners  
(public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5309 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2600 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 8, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Mark and Hillary Smith, Owners  (public 
hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2021 

Page 5 
 

 Ordinance Number 3004 – Annexation – Overnight – 2600 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 8, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Mark and Hillary Smith, Owners  (public 
hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5312 – A Resolution Of The Vestavia Hills City Council Acting 
As The Vestavia Hills Emergency Communications Board (E911 Board) Authorizing 
The Purchase Of $24,000 For Radio Communications Equipment   (public hearing) 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, thanked the Council for the work they do to annually 
work through a two-day planning session. He stated he knows that it is long, hard and tedious 
work.  He addressed the 1% sales tax passed recently which was supposed to be used to pay back 
the 30-year warrant issue.  Apparently, there’s enough revenue being generated so that the loan 
can be paid off early by using some surplus.  The Vestavia Voice didn’t really report it that way.  
He stated if the surplus is not going to be used to pay off the debt early, he thinks the surplus 
should be redirected toward street resurfacing because some streets need improvements, 
especially Canyon Road.  The City also needs a plan for the maintenance of the sidewalks with 
funding set aside for said maintenance.  In closing, Mr. Harwell indicated that some funding needs 
to be appropriated to repair and replace street lights, street markers and traffic signals. He also 
suggested that maybe the City should review the annexation of the Rocky Ridge Fire District. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that annexation is done on a petition basis and each one is carefully 
considered for impact on the City and the school system.  He doesn’t anticipate the City looking 
at annexation of the RRFD. 
 
 At 6:28 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:28 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5303 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5303 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 7, 2020, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of March, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

31st day of March, 2021. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of May, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5303 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5303 
Page 2 

 
3632 Dabney Drive 

Lot 26, Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector 
Vita Marshman, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



ALTA
DENA

DABNEY

ALTACREST

SKYLAND

DOLLY RIDGE

VALLEY

BRIARWOOD

LESLIE ANN

ELMER J BISSELL

MO
UN

TA
IN

 VI
ST

A

ALTADENA FOREST

RIDGEDALE

LONGLEAF

VESTCREEK

PINELAND

Subject
Property

3632 Dabney Drive±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  3632 Dabney Drive Property Address

====>   $                                                           265,400  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$26,540.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$545.40 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$763.03 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,308.42
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$400.75
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$217.63 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$545.40 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,381.41 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$1,926.80 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

3632 Dabney Drive



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Non‐Homestead Properties
AD VALOREM TAX RATES

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills
0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills
0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access 
Portal Descriptor Description

====>                                                              335,100  Appraised Value
TOTAL MARKET 
VALUE

20%
Assessment rate (20% for non‐
homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

                                                              67,020  Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 
BREAKDOWN 

1377.261 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55
                                                           1,926.83  BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

                                                           3,304.09 
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE CITY

1012.00
Special Local School Assessment 
(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

549.56 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

1377.261 Annexation Revenue to CITY
CITY (General Fund 
portion) (20.55 mills)

                                                           3,488.39  Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC 
SCHOOL1 + CITY 
(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

                                                           4,865.65  TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue
BOE Revenue



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



Ordinance Number 3000 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3000 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Vita Marshman dated December 

7, 2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
3632 Dabney Drive 

Lot 26, Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector 
Vita Marshman 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  



Ordinance Number 3000 
Page 2 

 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3000 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of March, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3000 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5304 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5304 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 9, 2020, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of March, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

31st day of March, 2021. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of May, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5304 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5304 
Page 2 

 
1700 Shades Crest Road 

Whitney and Thomas Holland, Owner(s) 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point on the West line of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 25, Township 18 
South, Range 3 West which is 460.0 feet South of the Northwest corner of said quarter-
quarter section; thence run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 454.4 feet,, more or 
less, to a point on the Westerly line of Crest Road, which point is 625 feet in a 
Southwesterly direction along the West line of said road from the North line of said quarter-
quarter section; thence turn an angle to the right and run in a Southwesterly direction along 
said westerly line of said road to the intersection with the Northeast line of Columbiana 
Road; thence an angle to the right and run for about 450 feet, more or less, along said 
Northeast line, to the West line of said quarter-quarter section; thence turn an angle to the 
right and run in a Northerly direction along the West line of said quarter-quarter section 
for a distance of 40.8 feet more or less, to the point of beginning.  Less and except any 
portion of subject property lying within a road right-of-way. 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Subject
Property

CO
LU

MBIA
NA

SH
AD

ES
 CR

ES
T

WOODBINE

PIN
E C

RE
ST

VESTAVIEW

BE
VE

RL
Y H

ILL
S

OLD
 COLU

MBIA
NA

ERWIN

CATALA
LA

KE
WO

OD

SH
AD

ES
 V

IEW

CE
DA

RB
AR

K

SUNSET
CR

ES
TM

ON
T

CEDARWOOD

OVERLOOK

RIDGEWOOD

MOUNTAIN WOODS

WO
OD

VIE
W

OL
D 

CR
EE

K

JACOBS

MARKCLIFF

UNNAMED

WA
LN

UT
 H

ILL

FLOWERWOOD

UN
NA

ME
D

SHADES CREST

CO
LU

MBIA
NA

FLOWERWOOD

1700 Shades Crest Road±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  1700 Shades Crest Road Property Address

====>   $                                                           468,500  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$46,850.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$962.77 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$1,346.94 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,309.71
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$707.44
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$384.17 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$962.77 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,438.54 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,401.31 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



Ordinance Number 3001 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3001 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Whitney and Thomas Holland 

dated November 9, 2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
1700 Shades Crest Road 

Whitney and Thomas Holland 
 

More particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point on the West line of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 25, Township 18 
South, Range 3 West which is 460.0 feet South of the Northwest corner of said quarter-
quarter section; thence run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 454.4 feet,, more or 
less, to a point on the Westerly line of Crest Road, which point is 625 feet in a 



Ordinance Number 3001 
Page 2 

 

Southwesterly direction along the West line of said road from the North line of said quarter-
quarter section; thence turn an angle to the right and run in a Southwesterly direction along 
said westerly line of said road to the intersection with the Northeast line of Columbiana 
Road; thence an angle to the right and run for about 450 feet, more or less, along said 
Northeast line, to the West line of said quarter-quarter section; thence turn an angle to the 
right and run in a Northerly direction along the West line of said quarter-quarter section 
for a distance of 40.8 feet more or less, to the point of beginning.  Less and except any 
portion of subject property lying within a road right-of-way. 
 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ordinance Number 3001 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3001 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of March, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3001 
Page 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 5307 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5307 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 14, 2020, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of March, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

31st day of March, 2021. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of June, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5307 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5307 
Page 2 

 
2829 Acton Place 

Lindsay and Jake Brown, Owner(s) 
 

More particularly described as follows:  The following tract of land situated 
in the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4, Section 34, Township 18 South, 
Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama and being more particularly 
described as follows:  
 
Commence at the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1 /4 of the Northwest 
1 /4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; Thence East along the 
South 1/4 -1/4 line, 333.17 feet to the point of beginning; Thence 92 degrees 
48 minutes 53 seconds left, 303.77 feet; to the southerly right-of-way of 
Acton Place; Thence 72 degrees 24 minutes 57 seconds right, 150.00 feet 
along said right-of-way; Thence 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds right, 
and leaving said right-of-way 170.20 feet; Thence 20 degrees 23 minutes 
56 seconds right, 196.16 feet to the south 1 /4 - 1 /4 line; Thence 90 degrees 
00 minutes 00 seconds right, 185.00 feet along said 1 /4 - 1 /4 line to the 
point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Subject
Property

I45
9

CAHABA RIVER

CALDWELL MILL

DE
NY

SE

CO
LO

NN
AD

E

ACTON

JE
NN

Y

CAMP HORNER

HE
AL

TH
Y

RESERVE

CO
LO

NY
 PA

RK

BL
UE

 LA
KE

TIM
BE

RL
AK

E

ALTADENA LAKE

OLD LOONEY MILL

FIVE OAKS

PINE TREE

AL
TA

 VI
EW

OLD 280

REDWING

WHITNEY

LAKELAND

DANBURY

CALDWELL

DEVEREUX

AL
TA

DE
NA

 LA
KE

AC
TO

N

HE
ALT

HY

I45
9

LAKELAND

2829 Acton Place±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



Property: 2829 Acton Place

8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.
Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of
$ _____ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation.
Yes___ No ___ Comment ______________ _

9. Property is fre cl clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials.
Yes_........,;_ No ___ Comment ______________ _

10. Are there any concern� departments?
Yes ___ No ___ Comments: ______________ _

11. Information on chil� Number in family __ -�.5� ___ ; Plan to enroll in VH
schools Yes_i/ __ N No ____ Comments: __________ _

Other Comments:
------------------------

�-----· 
ck,?g"e Pierce

1 _ 
(").-_ .-, JChairman c::;:r- ?5 - d 

2829 Acton Place



CITY OF VEST A VIA HILLS 

Department Review of Proposed Annexation 

(To be completed by Official City Reviewers) 

The following properties have requested to be annexed into the City. Please review this request 
and then forward your comments to the City Clerk as soon as is reasonably possible. 

Location: 2829 Acton Place 

Engineering; Public Services Date: J � 2.,/
--

L/ Initials: 
-------

d d in good condition;
r- ---- . noted· roadway recently pave an 

2829 Acton Place -- no significant concerns , 
. . rties remain in County so roadway

32x48 CMP under roadway in ok condition; some ne1ghbonng prope 

maintenance in this area will continued to be shared. 

Police Department: Date: Initials: 
-------

Comments: 

Fire Department: Date: ) /.2z }z,1 
j 

Initials: L':p.

Comments: 

Board of Education: Date: �/ �/ 8/ Initials:_'Sj�/!3�--

Comments: 

2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2829 Acton Place Property Address

====>   $                                                           335,100  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$33,510.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$688.63 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$963.41 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,652.04
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$506.00
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$274.78 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$688.63 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,744.20 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,432.83 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



Ordinance Number 3002 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3002 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Lindsay and Jake Brown dated 

December 14, 2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2829 Acton Place 
Lindsay and Jake Brown 

More Particularly described as follows: 

The following tract of land situated in the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 
1/4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama and being more particularly described as follows:  



Ordinance Number 3002 
Page 2 

Commence at the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1 /4 of the Northwest 
1 /4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; Thence East along the 
South 1/4 -1/4 line, 333.17 feet to the point of beginning; Thence 92 degrees 
48 minutes 53 seconds left, 303.77 feet; to the southerly right-of-way of 
Acton Place; Thence 72 degrees 24 minutes 57 seconds right, 150.00 feet 
along said right-of-way; Thence 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds right, 
and leaving said right-of-way 170.20 feet; Thence 20 degrees 23 minutes 
56 seconds right, 196.16 feet to the south 1 /4 - 1 /4 line; Thence 90 degrees 
00 minutes 00 seconds right, 185.00 feet along said 1 /4 - 1 /4 line to the 
point of beginning. 

SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3002 
Page 3 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3002 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of March, 2021, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the 
Forest, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2021. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3002 
Page 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 5308 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5308 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 14, 2020, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of March, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

31st day of March, 2021. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of June, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5308 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5308 
Page 2 

 
2632 Alta Vista Circle 

Lots 15 & 16, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 
Victor and Cynthia Maldonado, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Subject
Property

I45
9

AC
TO

N

AL
TA

DE
NA AL
TA

 GL
EN

CAMP HORNER

ALTADENA LAKE

AL
TA

 VI
ST

A

BR
IAR

WOOD

REDBUD

ALTADENA PARK

HICKORY RIDGE

ALTA
DENA RIDGE

REDWING
LAKELAND

DANBURY

OS
SA

 W
IN

TH
A

THORNHILL
I45

9

ACTON

ACTON

ALTADENA PARK

LAKELAND

2632 Alta Vista Circle±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2632 Alta Vista Circle (lts 15 & 16 Property Address

====>   $                                                           345,800  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$34,580.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$710.62 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$994.18 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,704.79
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$522.16
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$283.56 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$710.62 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,799.89 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,510.51 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



Ordinance Number 3003 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3003 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Victor and Cynthia Maldonado 

dated December 14, 2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2632 Alta Vista Circle 

Lots 15 & 16, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 
Victor and Cynthia Maldonado 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 3003 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3003 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of March, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3003 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5309 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5309 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated October 30, 2020, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of March, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

31st day of March, 2021. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of June, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5309 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5309 
Page 2 

 
2600 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 8, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 
Mark and Hillary Smith, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



I45
9

AC
TO

N

AL
TA

DE
NA AL
TA

 GL
EN

CAMP HORNER

ALTADENA LAKE

ALT
A V

IST
A

BR
IAR

WOOD

REDBUD

ALTADENA PARK

HICKORY RIDGE

ALTA
DENA RIDGE

REDWING
LAKELAND

DANBURY

OS
SA

 W
IN

TH
A

THORNHILL

I45
9

ACTON

ACTON

ALTADENA PARK

LAKELAND

Subject
Property

2600 Alta Vista Circle±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2600 Alta Vista Circle  Property Address

====>   $                                                           238,900  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$23,890.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$490.94 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$686.84 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,177.78
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$360.74
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$195.90 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$490.94 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,243.47 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$1,734.41 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



Ordinance Number 3004 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3004 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Mark and Hillary Smith dated 

October 30, 2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2600 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 8, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 
Mark and Hillary Smith 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 3004 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3004 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of March, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3004 
Page 3 

 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5312 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS CITY COUNCIL ACTING 
AS THE VESTAVIA HILLS( E911) EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS 
BOARD AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE 
ADDITIONAL RADIO COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT FOR THE 
POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase radio communications equipment for

the Vestavia Hills Police and Fire Departments at a cost not to exceed $24,000 as detailed

in a Memorandum from the Fire Chief dated February 23, 2021, a copy of which is marked

as “Exhibit A,” attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5312 as though

written fully therein; and

2. Said equipment shall be expensed from the City’s Restricted Vestavia Hills Emergency

Communications District Funds, and

3. This Resolution Number shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of March, 2021.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

Serving Since 1951 
 

 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  February 23, 2021 
 
RE:  Legacy 911 Cost Reimbursement  
 
 
 
 
The City of Vestavia Hills Emergency Communications District (VHECD) has received notification 
that we will receive $24,024 for Legacy 911 dispatch related expenses through the Alabama 911 
board.  The funding will come in the form of quarterly reimbursement for our AT&T E911 trunk 
costs that we pay to maintain our E911 services.  
 
We are requesting the approval of the council acting as the VHECD to allocate the $24,000 
unbudgeted surplus to budget 09-54-5105-000-200. These funds will be used to purchase additional 
needed radio communications equipment for the police and fire departments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5312



Resolution Number 5313 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5313 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 
PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and

2. This Resolution Number 5313 shall become effective immediately upon

adoption and approval.

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 22nd day of March, 

2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

 

           03/11/21 
 
 

To: Rebecca Leavings 
 
 From: CPT Sean Richardson, Vestavia Hills Police Department 
 
CC: COP Danny P. Rary, CPT Johnny Evans, SGT Randall Jones, CPL Rob Wilson 
  
 Re: Surplus City Property   
 
    
Please request that the City Council deem the following property surplus at the next meeting: 
 
2015 Honda Goldwing Motorcycle – Mileage – 16,805 VIN # JH2SC68H8FK300225 
 
2015 Honda Goldwing Motorcycle– Mileage – 22,295 VIN # JH2SC68G8FK300152 
 
2015 Honda Goldwing Motorcycle – Mileage -19,898 VIN # JH2SC68G3FK300723 
 
 
Please contact me if you need any further information, or have questions or concerns regarding 
this action.  
 
                                                                  
Very Respectfully,  
 
   
 
Sean E. Richardson 
Captain, VHPD 
Patrol Division 
Ext: 1118 – Cell: (205)470-2409 
srichardson@vhal.org 
    

 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5313



Resolution Number 5305 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5305 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ASSENTING TO 

A DECLARATION OF VACATION 
 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, A Declaration signed by the owners of all the lands abutting the 

following described portion of Pine Tree Drive right-of-way situated in the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, vacating said portion of Pine Tree Drive right-of-way, 

has been duly presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for 

assent and approval of said governing body; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said Declaration with map attached is marked as “Exhibit 

A”, attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out 

fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the portion of Pine Tree Drive right-of-way above referred to is 

commonly referred to as “a portion of Pine Tree Drive right-of-way” and is more 

particularly described as follows: 

Description Of Partial Vacation Of Pine Tree Drive. 

Part of the southwest ¼ of southeast ¼ of section 17, right of way of pine 
drive in Topfield subdivision as recorded in map book 42, page 72 in the 
office of probate judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, township 18 south, 
range 2 west, Jefferson County, Alabama.  Begin at the southeastern corner 
of lot 17, Topfield subdivision as recorded in map book 42, page 72 in the 
Office of Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama; said corner being 
on the intersection of the northerly right of way of pine drive and westerly 
line of Colony Wood Apartments as recorded in map book 170, page 72; 
thence run south 00°00'52" east for 50 feet along the easterly right of way 
line of said pine drive and westerly line of said colony wood apartments to 
the northeastern corner of lot 18 of said Topfield subdivision and the 
intersection of southerly line of said Pine Drive (to be vacated) and the 
westerly line of said Colony Wood Apartments; thence run north 89°29'14" 
west along north line of said lot 18 and the southerly line of said Pine Drive 
(right of way to be vacated) for 175.08 feet to a curve to the left subtending 
a central angle of 90°31 '38" and having a radius of 25.16 feet; thence run 
along the arc of said curve for 39.03 feet and southerly right of way of Pine 
Drive (to be vacated) to the end of said curve, and point being on the 
westerly right of way line of Pine Tree Circle and easterly line of said Pine 
Tree Drive right of way (to be vacated); thence run north 00°00'52" west 
for 100.20 feet along the easterly right of way of Pine Tree Circle and 
westerly right of way line of Pine Drive (to be vacated) for 100.20 feet to a 
point on the northerly right of way of Pine Drive (to be vacated) and 
westerly line of said lot 17, said point being a curve to the left subtending a 



Resolution Number 5305 
Page 2 

 

central angle of 90°21 '30" having a radius of 24.84 feet; thence run along 
the arc of said curve and northerly right of way of pine drive (to be vacated) 
for 39.17 feet and southerly line of said lot 17 to the end of said curve; 
thence run south 89°29' 14" east for 175.08 feet along said southerly line of 
lot 17, and northerly right of way of Pine Drive (to be vacated) to the point 
of beginning. Said parcel contains 10,270 square feet or 0.24 acres, more or 
less. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the vacation of the hereinabove 

described portion of Pine Tree Drive right-of-way is assented to and approved and the same 

is hereby vacated pursuant to the provision of Section 23-4-20 of the Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

  RESOLVED, DONE AND ORDERED, on this the 12th day of April, 

2021. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 5305 
Page 3 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 I, the undersigned qualified acting Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed 
and adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 12th day of April, 2021, and that such Resolution is of record in the 
Minute Book of the City at page _________ thereof. 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on this the __________ day of ___________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 5305 
Page 4 

 

 



















































Resolution Number 5306 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5306 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE VALUE OF VACATED 
RIGHT-OF-WAY  

 
 WHEREAS, on the 12th of April, 2021, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Resolution Number 5305, vacating a portion of 

rights-of-way pursuant to the provisions of Section 23-4-20 of the Code of Alabama, 1975; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Section 11-49-6, Code of Alabama, 1975 requires:  “as a condition 

of exercise of such power to vacate, the governing body may require abutting landowners 

who will directly benefit from such vacation to pay to such municipality a vacation of right-

of-way fee equal to the fair market value of the land which will be added to the holdings of 

such abutting landowners”; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 11-49-6, Code of Alabama, 1975 further requires that: “In no 

event shall the said vacation of right-of-way fee exceed the assessed value per square foot 

of all subdivision lots or tracts abutting the right-of-way to be vacated applied to square 

foot area of real property to be added to the holdings of each abutting landowner paying 

such fee; provided, however, the determination of such a fee in a lesser amount by the 

governing body of the municipality shall be conclusive as to its amount”; and 

 WHEREAS, the terms of this Resolution shall be based upon the following 

definitions:  

(1) the “fair market value” of the property is the value of the land as determined 

by the Jefferson County Board of Equalization; and 

(2) the “assessed value” of the property is determined by the classification of 

the property (i.e. “Class 1” residential, owner-occupied; “Class 2” 

residential, non-owner-occupied) 

 WHEREAS, an analysis of the future use of the property along with a required 

rezoning and platting in which this private property will be offered for development by the 

private developer, owner of both adjacent properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the applicant has requested and the City Council has approved the 

vacation of said portion of right-of-way at a value of $4,333.94; and 



Resolution Number 5306 
Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

accept the recommendation of the City Manager and determine the value set at $4,334.94. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Council has determined that the value of the property vacated in Resolution 

Number 5069 is calculated at an amount equivalent to $4334.94; and 

2. Said value along with all cost of advertising pursuant to Alabama law shall be 

remitted to the City Clerk prior to filing said vacation in the Office of the Judge 

of Probate of Jefferson County; and 

3. Said Resolution Number 5306 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval and posting/publishing as required by Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of April, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 


	2021_0322CC_A
	2021_0308CC_M
	Resolution 5303
	Ordinance 3000
	Resolution 5304
	Ordinance 3001
	Resolution 5307
	Ordinance 3002
	Resolution 5308
	Ordinance 3003
	Resolution 5309
	Ordinance 3004
	Resolution 5312
	Resolution 5313
	Resolution 5305
	Resolution 5306



